BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MEETING OF THE AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 14TH SEPTEMBER 2017, AT 6.00 P.M.

PRESENT: Councillors M. J. A. Webb (Chairman), C. Allen-Jones, R. J. Deeming,

P.L. Thomas and M. Thompson

Observers: Richard D Percival, Neil Preece and Councillor B. T. Cooper

Officers: Ms. J. Pickering, Mrs. C. Felton, Mr. A. Bromage, Mr P. Field and

Ms. J. Bayley

19/17 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors S. R. Colella, R. J. Laight, P. M. McDonald and S. R. Peters. Apologies were also received on behalf of Parish Councillor C. Scurrell.

20/17 **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND WHIPPING ARRANGEMENTS**

There were no declarations of interest nor of any whipping arrangements.

21/17 TO CONFIRM THE ACCURACY OF THE MINUTES OF THE AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 15TH JUNE 2017

The minutes of the meeting of the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee held on 15th June 2017 were submitted.

The Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Resources confirmed that all of the actions that had been raised in respect of the Benefits and Compliance Annual Update Report 2016/17 at Minute Item No. 11/17 had been addressed. Other treasurers in the county had been consulted about customer error and fraud and it had been clarified that in Bromsgrove overpayments received and written off during the year occurred in relation to customer debts rather than Council errors. Confirmation had also been received that the financial benefits to the other major preceptor and the rate of 10% of any additional income raised was considered to be acceptable.

During consideration of the Minutes the Chairman noted a typographical error at Minute No. 15/17 in respect of the Financial Savings Monitoring Update Report for January to March 2017. Incorrect dates had been recorded in the resolution for this item; this should have referred to April to March 2017.

RESOLVED that, subject to the amendment detailed in the preamble above, the minutes of the meeting of the Audit Standards and Governance Committee held on 15th June 2017 be approved as a correct record.

22/17 STANDARDS REGIME - MONITORING OFFICERS' REPORT

The Head of Legal, Equalities and Democratic Services presented the Monitoring Officer's report and in so doing highlighted the following:

- The number of complaints, which were the same as those reported at the previous meeting.
- The arrangements for reporting the outcomes of any investigation into complaints involving Members. Members were advised that a report would be provided to the Committee on the outcomes of these investigations so that lessons could be learned for the future.
- There had been finance training provided since the last meeting which had been well received.

Following the presentation Members noted that in the report it was proposed that a report of that nature should be presented at each meeting of the Committee. The Chairman explained that the report was helpful and that he would like the Committee to continue to receive the report at every meeting. Members also noted that a planning training session had taken place during the period which had not been referred to in the report.

RESOLVED that subject to Members' comments, the report be noted.

23/17 **AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT - GRANT THORNTON**

Richard Percival, from Grant Thornton, presented the Audit Findings Report 2016/17 on behalf of the external auditor. Members were reminded that the final clearance of the Council's accounts would not be determined until the Council meeting on 20th September the external auditors was reserving their audit opinion until this had taken place.

During the presentation of this report the following matters were highlighted for Members' consideration:

- There had been an improvement year on year in the production of financial statements and in the timeliness of the Council's process.
- The deadline for local authority accounts would be coming forward in 2018/19 and the external auditors believed that further progress needed to be achieved to enable the Council to meet this new deadline.
- The resources available to the Council to process the accounts would need to be considered, with some staff absences likely to take place in 2018/19. The Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Resources reassured Members that a new Deputy S151

- Officer would be starting in November and maternity cover was being arranged for a key post.
- Whilst reviewing the accounts Grant Thornton had identified one asset that was not in the Council's ownership; following investigation it had been found that this was an isolated incident.
- There had also been an amendment made to the housing benefit subsidy figure included in the accounts of £93k. This was a very small element of the £16m benefit payment
- The requirements for reporting on the Council's revenue account had changed in 2017/18 and the external auditors had reviewed closely the local authority's approach to managing this.
- A weakness was highlighted in relation to the submission of the pension returns to County. Whilst this did not impact on the figures in the accounts it was recognised that a process needed to be robust to submit the returns. The Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Resources explained that this related to the payroll system which was being addressed.
- The external auditors would be issuing a qualified value for money (vfm) conclusion. There had been some improvements made by the Council but these were not sufficient to enable Grant Thornton to give an unqualified vfm conclusion.
- Grant Thornton had undertaken work to review key areas that had been identified as risks for the Council in the audit plan.
- A number of recommendations had been made to senior officers, as detailed in the appendix to the plan, and the external auditors were satisfied with the response that they had received to these.
- Members requested that the action plan in the report be provided for the Committee's consideration at every meeting.
- The external auditors had reviewed the Council's financial monitoring and budget reports and had found that it was not always clear where the Council's ability to achieve proposed savings might be at risk. Officers were in the process of addressing this.
- Grant Thornton had also reviewed the robustness of the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) and had found this to be mixed. Members were advised that at Councils with the most robust MTFP the business cases had often been subject to detailed and effective pre-scrutiny.
- The Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Resources advised Members that heads of service had been challenged to review actual expenditure alongside planned expenditure and budgets

Following the presentation the Committee discussed a range of matters in further detail:

 The process for submitting information to the actuary who provided the Council with an annual estimate of the authority's pension liabilities.

- The process followed by external auditors when reaching a vfm conclusion. Members were advised that the National Audit Office (NAO) proscribed the approach to reaching this conclusion.
- The extent to which the vfm conclusion took into account outcomes and outputs. Members were advised that the focus was more on identifying risks and the auditor's confidence in the Council's financial process rather than on assessing outcomes.
- The extent to which proposed savings were achieved according to timescales set by the Council would, however, be taken into account involving some assessment of output.

At the end of these discussions the Committee

RESOLVED that the Audit Findings Report 2016/17 be noted; and

RECOMMENDED that Council approve the draft letter of representation.

24/17 <u>AUDITED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2016/17 (INCLUDING FINAL</u> ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT)

The Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Resources delivered a presentation on the subject of the audited statement of accounts 2016/17 (Appendix 1). During the delivery of this presentation a number of points were highlighted for Members' consideration:

- Managers received updates on the budgets within their remit on a monthly basis, with figures being reported to Members every quarter.
- The statement of accounts had to be submitted in a particular way.
 The Council followed the CIPFA model when doing so.
- The Council had balances of £4.2 million. This position was considered to be good, with Members having previously set a limit of £1.1 million below which the balances could not fall.
- The Council's balances were not considered to be unreasonable by the external auditors.
- The balances took into account funds that had been underspent in 2015/16.
- Reserves were set aside to be spent on specific projects.
- The total position for balances and reserves was £7.8 million.
- The Council did not have many capital receipts. As a consequence if the Council wanted to deliver capital projects it needed to borrow funds.
- In the event that the Council sold land or assets the funding from the sale could only be spent on capital projects.
- The local authority also had unusable reserves. These were assets which had a value that could not be accessed without selling the asset.
- The Council had a pension deficit of £42 million which distorted the position on unusable reserves

- The deficit position of the Council's pension liabilities was comparable to many local authorities in the country.
- Every three years the actuary re-evaluated the contributions that the Council and staff needed to pay towards their pensions.
- The pension deficit was paid off in instalments over time.
- All Councils were trying to reduce their pension deficits but this could be impacted by factors outside the local authority's control such as longevity and the return on pension investments.
- Whilst staff employed by each of the district Councils were part of Worcestershire County Council's pension scheme the liabilities for the different Councils would vary according to the number of staff employed by the authority and the proportion of those staff who were paying into the pension scheme.
- If the Council's pension deficit was excluded from the figures the local authority would be in credit with £26 million in usable reserves.

Following the presentation Members discussed a range of issues in detail:

- The incorporation of the Council's strategic purposes into the presentation of the accounts.
- The meaning of the Council's strategic purposes.
- The background to the development of the strategic purposes. The Executive Director of Finance and Corporate Resources explained that these had been approved by the Council approximately 3/4 years previously
- The need for the Council's accounts to be reported in accordance with the Council's priorities which were the strategic purposes.
- The potential for accounts listed in accordance with departmental spending to enhance Members' awareness of problem areas as well as accountability.
- The Council's pension liabilities and the fact that many companies in the private sector also had this problem.

At the end of the Committee's discussions Members

RECOMMENDED that the Statement of Accounts 2016/17, including the Accounting Policies, be considered and the accounts approved by Council.

25/17 <u>INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT</u>

The Head of the Internal Audit Shared Service provided an update on the progress that had been achieved by the Internal Audit team in the first quarter of 2017/18 up to 31st July 2017. During the presentation of this update the following points were raised for the Committee's consideration:

<u>Audit, Standards and Governance Committee</u> <u>14th September 2017</u>

- The outcomes of the shared services review for North Worcestershire Building Control had been recorded. This included a medium priority recommendation for consideration.
- Comparative data had been provided for Members' consideration to help assess the progress of Internal Audit compared to previous years.
- Some of the budgets for Internal Audit could fluctuate between quarters.
- Attempts were made in the report to address the outcomes of Internal Audit reviews and Officers would revisit services to assess the impact.
- A number of the recommendations that had previously been outstanding for some time had now been addressed.
- The Internal Audit team had clear escalation arrangement in place and were able to pick up on non-delivery, should it occur, far quicker than in previous years.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

26/17 <u>RISK CHAMPION - VERBAL UPDATE REPORT (COUNCILLOR P. THOMAS)</u>

The Council's Risk Champion, Councillor P. L. Thomas, advised that a Risk Management Strategy had been developed which would be provided for Members' consideration at the following meeting of the Committee.

The Committee was asked to note that 2 Members had taken on the role of the Risk Champion over the last 2 years and it would be useful to provide another Member with an opportunity to assume this responsibility. In the absence of many Members of the Committee it was agreed that no decision would be taken on this matter at this meeting but the Committee would be invited to consider an alternative appointment to the position of Risk Champion at the next meeting. In the meantime Councillor Thomas agreed to continue in the role.

27/17 <u>AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK</u> <u>PROGRAMME</u>

Members considered the Committee's Work Programme for 2017/18.

RESOLVED that the Work Programme be noted.

The meeting closed at 7.22 p.m.